

**TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NEPTUNE
MONMOUTH COUNTY, NEW JERSEY**

**PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF FINAL ADOPTION OF BOND ORDINANCE NO. 18-23 AND SUMMARY**

The bond ordinance, the summary terms of which are included herein, has been finally adopted by the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey on July 9, 2018 and the twenty (20) day period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such ordinance can be commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this statement. Copies of the full ordinance are available at no cost and during regular business hours, at the Clerk's office for members of the general public who request the same. The summary of the terms of such bond ordinance follows:

Title: BOND ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RESTATING BOND ORDINANCE NUMBER 17-20 FINALLY ADOPTED BY THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NEPTUNE, IN THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH, STATE OF NEW JERSEY ON JUNE 26, 2017 IN ITS ENTIRETY TO INCREASE THE TOTAL APPROPRIATION THEREIN FROM \$500,000 TO \$550,000, TO DECREASE THE TOTAL DEBT AUTHORIZATION THEREIN FROM \$475,000 TO \$333,000, AND TO AMEND AND RESTATE OTHER PROVISIONS THEREIN

Purpose(s): Amend and restate Bond Ordinance No. 17-20 (Fletcher Lake bulkhead, bridge and roadway improvements) in its entirety to increase the total appropriation from \$500,000 to \$550,000, decrease the total debt authorization from \$475,000 to \$333,000, and amend and restate other provisions therein

Appropriation: \$550,000

Bonds/Notes Authorized: \$333,000

Grant/Contribution: \$192,727.80 (Contribution anticipated to be received from the Borough of Bradley Beach)

Section 20 Costs: \$150,000

Useful Life: 15 years

**RICHARD J. CUTTRELL,
Clerk of the Township of Neptune**

NOTICE
ORDINANCE NO. 18-24
Township of Neptune
County of Monmouth

NOTICE is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune on the 9th day of July, 2018, the following Ordinance was introduced and passed on first reading.

Said Township Committee will meet on Monday, the 13th day of August, 2018, at the Neptune Municipal Complex, Township Committee Meeting Room – 2nd Floor, 25 Neptune Blvd. Neptune, New Jersey at 7:00 p.m. to further consider this ordinance for final passage and to give all interested persons an opportunity to be heard concerning this ordinance. Copies of the full text of the ordinance published herewith are available for inspection by the members of the general public who shall request same at the office of the Township Clerk located at the above address. The ordinance is also posted on the Township web site at www.neptunetownship.org.

ORDINANCE NO. 18-24

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 16-46 ENTITLED
“AN ORDINANCE CREATING AND SETTING THE SALARY
RANGE FOR NEW JOB TITLES AND AMENDING THE SALARY
RANGES FOR ALL OTHER EXISTING JOB TITLES OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF NEPTUNE” BY CREATING THE POSITION OF
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as follows:

SECTION 1

Ordinance No. 16-46 be and is hereby amended as follows:

- A. The job title of HPC Administrative Officer is hereby created and the salary range for said job title is established in Section 2 below.
- B. The job description for said job title is on file in the Human Resources Department.

SECTION 2

The salary range for HPC Administrative Officer is hereby established as follows:

<u>TITLE</u>	<u>MINIMUM</u>	<u>MAXIMUM</u>
HPC Administrative Officer	\$ 5,000.00	\$ 9,000.00

SECTION 3

This ordinance shall be effective upon publication in accordance with law.

Richard J. Cuttrell,
Municipal Clerk

NOTICE
ORDINANCE NO. 18-25
Township of Neptune
County of Monmouth

NOTICE is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune on the 9th day of July, 2018, the following Ordinance was introduced and passed on first reading.

Said Township Committee will meet on Monday, the 13th day of August, 2018, at the Neptune Municipal Complex, Township Committee Meeting Room – 2nd Floor, 25 Neptune Blvd. Neptune, New Jersey at 7:00 p.m. to further consider this ordinance for final passage and to give all interested persons an opportunity to be heard concerning this ordinance. Copies of the full text of the ordinance published herewith are available for inspection by the members of the general public who shall request same at the office of the Township Clerk located at the above address. The ordinance is also posted on the Township web site at www.neptunetownship.org.

ORDINANCE NO. 18-25

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND VOLUME I, CHAPTER XI, SECTION 11-1.3 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NEPTUNE BY FURTHER AMENDING THE CONSTRUCTION FEE SCHEDULE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM CONSTRUCTION CODE

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as follows:

(Proposed fees and additional items are in bold print and underlined)
(Deletions are noted in brackets and underlined)

SECTION 1

Chapter XI Section 11-1-3 “Fees”, be and is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

a. Plan review fee: The fee for plan review shall be [twenty] **ten** [20] **10** percent of the amount to be charged for a new construction permit. There shall be an additional fee of [\$50.00] **\$65.00** per hour or part thereof per subcode having assigned plan review responsibility for review of an amendment or change to a plan that has already been released. This fee may be waived at the discretion of the Construction Official in the event the work and review is of a minor nature.

b. The basic construction fee shall be the sum of the parts computed on the basis of the

volume or the cost of construction, the number of plumbing fixtures and pieces of equipment, the number of electric fixtures and devices and the number of sprinklers, standpipes and detectors (smoke and heat) at the unit rates and/or the applicable flat fees provided herein plus any special fees. The minimum fee for a basic construction permit covering any or all of building, plumbing, electric or fire protection work shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00** per Subcode except as herein noted.

1. BUILDING

Building volume or cost: The fees for new construction or alteration are as follows:

(a) Fees for new construction shall be based upon the volume of the structure. Volume shall be computed in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:23-2.28. The new construction fee shall be in the amount of ~~[\$0.034]~~ **\$0.046** per cubic foot of volume for buildings and structures of all use groups and types of construction as classified and defined in articles 3 and 4 of the building subcode; except that the fee shall be ~~[\$0.023]~~ **\$0.038** per cubic foot of volume for the following use groups F-1, F-2, S-1 and S-2, The minimum fee shall be ~~[\$187.00]~~ **\$250.00**.

(b) Fees for reconstruction, renovations, alterations and repairs or site construction associated with premanufactured construction, and external utility connections for pre-manufactured construction shall be based upon the estimated cost of the work. The fee shall be in the amount of ~~[\$31.00]~~ **\$42.00** per \$1,000.00 of the estimated cost of work. From \$50,001 to and including \$100,000, the additional fee shall be in the amount of ~~[\$27.00]~~ **\$36.00** per \$1,000 of the estimated cost above \$50,000. Above \$100,000, the additional fee shall be in the amount of ~~[\$23.00]~~ **\$31.00** per \$1,000 of the estimated cost above \$100,000.

(c) For the purpose of determining the estimated cost, the applicant shall submit such data as may be available produced by the architect or engineer of record, or by a recognized estimating firm, or by the contractor. A bona fide contractor's bid, if available, shall be submitted. The construction official shall make the final decision regarding estimated cost.

(d) Fees for additions shall be computed on the same basis for new construction for the added portion.

(e) Fees for combination renovations and additions shall be computed separately in accordance with items (a) and (b) above.

(f) The fee for tents requiring a construction permit shall be ~~[\$150.00]~~ **\$200.00**.

(g) The fee for temporary structures requiring a construction permit shall be ~~[\$93.00]~~ **\$125.00**.

(h) The fee for roofing and siding work completed on structures in use group R-3 and R-5 shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00** per structure. All other use groups shall be considered renovation and calculated as per (b) above.

(i) The fee for an above-ground swimming pool shall be ~~[\$81.00]~~ **\$110.00**.

(j) The fee for an in-ground swimming pool with a surface area greater than 800 square feet shall be ~~[\$250.00]~~ **\$337.00**; the fee for all other cases shall be ~~[\$186.00]~~ **\$200.00**.

(k) The fee for replacing barriers surrounding and enclosing swimming pools required to

have barriers shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(l) The fee for a permit to construct a sign shall be in the amount of ~~[\$2.00]~~ **\$2.70** per square foot of surface area of the sign, computed on one side only for a double-faced sign. The minimum fee shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(m) The fee for a permit for lead hazard abatement work shall be ~~[\$161.00]~~ **\$215.00**. The fee for lead abatement clearance certificate shall be ~~[\$32.00]~~ **\$45.00**.

(n) The fee for the issuance of a building permit that a fee has not been determined shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(o) The fee for a permit to move a building or structure from one lot to another or to a new location on the same lot shall be ~~[\$81.00]~~ **\$110.00** plus the cost of the new foundation and alterations to the building or structure for the placement in a completed condition in the new location shall be computed as required for renovations, alterations and repairs in section b.1(b).

(p) The fee to erect a fence greater than 6 feet in height shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(q) The fee for an asbestos removal permit shall be ~~[\$81.00]~~ **\$110.00**.

(r) Fees for retaining walls that require a construction permit shall be as follows:

- (1) The fee for a retaining wall with a surface area greater than 550 square feet that is associated with a Class 3 residential structure shall be ~~[\$173.00]~~ **\$235.00**;
- (2) The fee for a retaining wall with a surface area of 550 square feet or less that is associated with a Class 3 residential structure shall be ~~[\$86.00]~~ **\$115.00**;
- (3) The fee for a retaining wall of any size that is associated with other than a Class 3 residential structure shall be in accordance with 1(b) above.

2. PLUMBING

Plumbing fixtures and equipment: The fees shall be as follows:

(a) The fee shall be ~~[\$20.00]~~ **\$27.00** per plumbing fixture and or water closet, urinal, bidet, bath tub, shower, lavatory, sink, laundry tub, floor drains, drinking fountains, residential dishwashers, garbage disposals, clothes washers, water heaters up to 99 gallons, recirculation systems, roof drains, hose bibs, **air admittance valve**, residential oil piping, manholes, reheat coils, condensate drains, or similar devices, except as listed below.

(b) The fee shall be ~~[\$86.00]~~ **\$115.00** per special device for the following: grease traps, oil separators, water utility connections per every 150 lineal feet, sewer utility connections per every 150 lineal feet, commercial dishwashers, back flow preventors in other than one-and-two-family dwellings, sewer pumps, interceptors, active solar systems and, testing of waste and vents for modular homes.

(c) The fee shall be ~~[\$43.00]~~ **\$60.00** for the installation of lawn sprinkler backflow preventors.

(d) The fee shall be ~~[\$75.00]~~ **\$100.00** for the installation of a boiler (hot water or steam) **or furnace** up to 250,000 BTU's.

(e) The fee shall be [~~\$288.00~~] **\$390.00** for the installation of a boiler (hot water or steam) **or furnace** 250,001 BTU's and above.

(f) The fee for the installation of gas piping shall be [~~\$69.00~~] **\$95.00** plus [~~\$15.00~~] **\$20.00** per appliance **or equipment** connection to the system.

(g) The fee shall be [~~\$50.00~~] **\$65.00** for the installation of a water heater 100 gallons and up.

(h) The fee shall be [~~\$38.00~~] **\$50.00** for commercial oil piping. Adding to an existing system shall be [~~\$25.00~~] **\$35.00**.

(i) For cross connections and backflow preventors that are subject to testing, the fee shall be [~~\$98.00~~] **\$130.00** per device for each test.

(j) The fee shall be [~~\$69.00~~] **\$90.00** for the installation of air conditioning for use groups R-2, R-3, R-4 and R-5. **The fee for the installation of a Mini Split System shall be in accordance with 2(g) below.**

(k) The fee shall be [~~\$137.00~~] **\$185.00** for the installation of industrial and commercial air conditioning and refrigeration.

(l) The fee for the installation of hydronic piping shall be [~~\$43.00~~] **\$58.00** per every 100 lineal feet.

(m) The fee for the installation of medical gas shall be [~~\$81.00~~] **\$110.00** per system plus [~~\$20.00~~] **\$27.00** for each station, outlet, inlet, or alarm box.

(n) The fee for the installation of a Geo-Thermal system shall be [~~\$81.00~~] **\$110.00**.

(o) The fee for the demolition of a sewer or water service, or a septic system shall be [~~\$69.00~~] **\$95.00**.

(p) The fee for the installation of pool drains associated with swimming pools shall be [~~\$86.00~~] **\$115.00**.

(q) The fee for the installation of a Mini Split system shall be \$90.00 for each condenser unit and one (1) evaporator coil. The fee for each additional evaporator coil shall be \$27.00.

(r) The fee for the installation of duct work for use groups R-3 and R-5 shall be \$60.00.

3. ELECTRICAL

The electrical Subcode fees shall be as follows.

(a) For the first block of one to 25 receptacles, fixtures or devices, the fee shall be [~~\$60.00~~] **\$80.00**. For each additional block consisting of up to 25 receptacles, fixtures or devices, the fee shall be [~~\$25.00~~] **\$35.00**. For the purpose of computing this fee,

receptacles, fixtures or devices shall include wall switches, convenience receptacles, light fixtures, exit signs, emergency lights, smoke detectors, CO detectors, heat detectors, communications points, rain sensor, CATV, intercoms, alarm devices, glass-breaks, motion sensors, keypads, light standards eight feet or less in height including luminaries, thermostats, energy management points, sensors, dimmers, or similar electric fixtures and devices rated 20 amperes or less including motors or equipment rated less than one horsepower (hp) or one kilowatt (kW).

- (b) For each service equipment, ~~[panel board]~~ **panelboard, switchboard**, load center, overhead service entrance conductor, motor starter, motor control center, automatic transfer switch, disconnecting means, and future electric, such as circuits installed for future use or intermittent needs (all bonding and grounding for the above items are included), the fee shall be:

(1) Up to and including 200 amps	\$ [86.00] 115.00
(2) Up to and including 400 amps	\$ [156.00] 210.00
(3) Up to and including 800 amps	\$ [376.00] 510.00
(4) Up to and including 1200 amps	\$ [573.00] 775.00
(5) For each additional 400 amps or portion thereof above 1200 amps	

\$ ~~[156.00]~~ **210.00**

- (c) For each motor or electrical device rated in horsepower (hp), the fee shall be:

(1) From one hp up to and including 10 hp	\$ [20.00] 30.00
(2) Greater than 10 hp up to and including 50 hp	\$ [64.00] 90.00
(3) Greater than 50 hp up to and including 100 hp	\$ [125.00] 170.00
(4) Greater than 100 hp up to and including 200 hp	\$ [225.00] 300.00
(5) For each additional 100 hp or portion thereof above 200 hp	\$ 50.00

- (d) For each generator, transformer, **battery system**, and all other items measured in kW not specified in this fee schedule, the fee shall be:

(1) From one kW up to and including 10 kW	\$ [20.00] 30.00
(2) Greater than 10 kW up to and including 45 kW	\$ [64.00] 90.00
(3) Greater than 45 kW up to and including 112.5 kW	\$ [125.00] 170.00
(4) Greater than 112.5 kW up to and including 150 kW	\$ [225.00] 300.00
(5) For each additional 50 kW or portion thereof above 150 kW	\$ 50.00

- (e) For each piece or unit of equipment used for air conditioning, refrigeration, measured in tonnage, the fee shall be: ~~[\$13.00 per ton.]~~

(1) For the first three (3) tons or fraction thereof	\$ 39.00
(2) For each additional ton or fraction thereof above three tons	\$ 18.00

- (f) For each swimming pool, spa, hydro message tub, hot tub or sauna, (fee includes one GFCI, one timer, up to two underwater lights (UW), bonding and trenches up to 150 lineal feet), the fee shall be:

(1) Above-ground swimming pool for group R-5	\$ [\$86.00] 115.00
(2) In-ground swimming pool for group R-5	\$ [115.00] 155.00
(3) Swimming pool for all other groups	\$ [173.00] 235.00
(4) Spa, hydro message tub, hot tub, sauna	\$ [40.00] 55.00
(5) Annual Commercial Pool Inspection	\$ [81.00] 110.00
(6) For each additional UW light add	\$ [6.00] 8.00
(7) Trenches over 150 feet, add [\$43.00] \$60.00 for each 150 lineal feet	

(g) In other than one-and-two-family dwellings, for each burglar alarm panel, fire alarm panel, intercom panel, audio video head-end panel, energy management control panel, communications closet, and automated card access panels, the fee shall be ~~[\$43.00]~~ **\$60.00** per panel. The fee for devices connected to the system shall be in accordance with 3(a) above. For one-and-two-family dwellings, the fee shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**, which includes the first block of 25 devices connected to the system. For each additional block of 25 devices connected to the system, the fee shall be ~~[\$25.00]~~ **\$35.00**.

(h) For each trench of 150 lineal feet for primary power, secondary power, and communications, the fee shall be ~~[\$43.00]~~ **\$60.00**.

(i) For each solar photovoltaic system and other alternative energy systems, the fee shall be:

(1) For the first 10 kW	\$	[156.00] 210.00
(2) For each additional [10] 20 kW add	\$	[63.00] 85.00

(j) For light standards above 8-0' in height (includes first 150 lineal feet of trench), the fee shall be ~~[\$20.00]~~ **\$25.00** per fixture. Trenches over 150 lineal feet shall be ~~[\$43.00]~~ **\$60.00** for each additional 150 lineal feet.

(k) For each hardwired sign, the fee shall be ~~[\$56.00]~~ **\$75.00**.

(l) For each electric range, electric dryer, dishwasher, electric cook top, double oven, Garbage disposal, and electric water heater, the fee shall be:

(1) Individual dwelling units	\$	[29.00] 40.00
(2) All other groups	\$	[56.00] 75.00

(m) For the installation or replacement of each furnace or boiler, the fee shall be:

(1) Individual dwelling units	\$	[43.00] \$60.00
(2) All other groups	\$	[\$69.00] \$95.00

(n) For all lightning protection, lightning arrester systems, other than service electrode, the fee shall be ~~[\$13.00]~~ **\$18.00** for each point, lightning rod or arrestor.

(o) For each satellite dish, the fee shall be ~~[\$43.00]~~ **\$60.00**.

(p) For each electric vehicle car charging system the fee shall be:

(1) For use groups R-3 and R-5 the fee shall be \$86.00

(2) For all other use groups the fee shall be \$125.00.

(q) For marina dock power, boatyard, residential dock power, or similar applications. For each power pedestal, power distribution center, single-phase or three-phase up to 50-amps with any devices combination of 15-amp, 20-amp, 30-amp, or 50-amp and having a voltage of 120-volt, 208-volt, or 240-volt the fee for each pedestal shall be:

(1) 1 to 10 pedestals \$ **40.00 each**

(2) 11 to 20 pedestals \$ **35.00 each**

(3) 21 to 30 pedestals	\$ 30.00 each
(4) 31 to 40 pedestals	\$ 25.00 each
(5) 41 to 50 pedestals	\$ 20.00 each
(6) 51 to 100 pedestals	\$ 15.00 each

4. FIRE

For fire protection and hazardous equipment, sprinklers, standpipes, detectors (smoke and heat), pre-engineered suppression systems, gas and oil fired appliances not connected to the plumbing system, kitchen exhaust systems, incinerators, crematoriums, fireplaces and flues, the fee shall be as follows:

(a) The installation, relocation or alteration of sprinkler heads and single or multiple station smoke or heat detectors not connected to a fire alarm panel:

The fee for 20 or fewer sprinkler heads or detectors shall be _____ ~~[\$81.00]~~ **\$110.00**

The fee for 21 to and including 100 sprinkler heads or detectors shall be ~~[\$156.00]~~ **\$210.00**

The fee for 101 to and including 200 sprinkler heads or detectors shall be ~~[\$310.00]~~ **\$420.00**

The fee for 201 to and including 400 sprinkler heads or detectors shall be ~~[\$604.00]~~ **\$815.00**

The fee for 401 to and including 1000 sprinkler heads or detectors shall be ~~[\$920.00]~~ **\$1,240.00**

The fee for over 1000 sprinkler heads or detectors shall be _____ ~~[\$1,208.00]~~ **\$1,630.00**

In computing fees for heads and detectors, the number of each shall be counted separately and two fees, one for heads and one for detectors shall be charged.

(b) The fee for the installation of a fire alarm panel shall be ~~[\$68.00]~~ **\$95.00**. The fee for each smoke and heat detector, pull station, horn, strobe, enunciator, tamper switch, flow switch, and any other device connected to the fire alarm panel shall be in accordance with 4(a) above.

(c) The fee for each standpipe shall be ~~[\$242.00]~~ **\$325.00**.

(d) The fee for each independent pre-engineered system shall be ~~[\$125.00]~~ **\$170.00**.

(e) The fee for each gas or oil fired appliance which is not connected to the plumbing system shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(f) The fee for each commercial kitchen exhaust system shall be ~~[\$86.00]~~ **\$115.00**.

(g) The fee for each gas fireplace shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**. The fee for each solid fuel burning fireplace shall be ~~[\$86.00]~~ **\$115.00**.

(h) The fee for each flue attached to an oil or gas fired appliance shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(i) The fee shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00** for the installation of residential fuel tanks.

(j) The fee for the installation of commercial fuel tanks up to and including 1000 gallons shall be ~~[\$120.00]~~ **\$160.00** each. For tanks 1001 gallons and above the fee shall be ~~[\$225.00]~~ **\$300.00** each.

(k) The fee for the removal or abandonment of a fuel storage tank shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00** for each tank under 2000 gallons and ~~[\$100.00]~~ **\$135.00** for each tank 2000 gallons and above.

(l) The fee for each incinerator shall be ~~[\$420.00]~~ **\$570.00**.

(m) The fee for each crematorium shall be ~~[\$420.00]~~ **\$570.00**.

(n) The fee for fire suppression system underground piping, up to the building, shall be ~~[\$93.00]~~ **\$125.00** per every 150 lineal feet.

(o) The fee for the inspection of gasoline vapor/product line shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(p) The fee for the installation of a smoke control system shall be ~~[\$250.00]~~ **\$340.00**.

(q) For the installation, relocation, alteration or replacement of any item requiring a fire protection subcode permit and not included in section 4, the fee shall be per item as stated in 4 (a) above.

(r) The fee for the installation of a solar system shall be \$95.00.

5. CERTIFICATES AND OTHER FEES

Fees are as follows:

(a) The fee for a certificate of occupancy shall be ~~[10]~~ **12** percent of all construction permit and permit update fees. The minimum fee shall be ~~[\$50.00]~~ **\$60.00**.

(b) The fee for a certificate of occupancy granted pursuant to a change of use group shall be ~~[\$225.00]~~ **\$300.00**.

(c) The fee for a continued certificate of occupancy shall be ~~[\$225.00]~~ **\$300.00**.

(d) The fee for a temporary certificate of occupancy shall be \$30.00. There shall be no fee for the first issuance of the temporary certificate of occupancy provided the certificate of occupancy fee is paid at that time.

(e) The fee for an application for a variation in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:23- 2.10 shall be ~~[\$64.00]~~ **\$85.00**. The fee for a resubmission of an application for a variation shall be ~~[\$50.00]~~ **\$70.00**.

(f) The fee for a demolition or removal permit shall be ~~[\$110.00]~~ **\$150.00** for structures of less than 5,000 square feet in area and less than 30 feet in height, and for one and two family residences. The fee shall be ~~[\$150.00]~~ **\$200.00** for all other structures (accessory structures, garages and sheds with no utilities shall be ~~[\$43.00]~~ **\$60.00**).

(g) The fee to reinstate a lapsed construction permit shall be ten (10%) percent of the cost of the original permit, but in no case less than ~~[\$68.00]~~ **\$95.00**.

(h) The fee for the issuance of a construction permit as a result of changing from one contractor to another shall be ~~[\$69.00]~~ **\$95.00** plus the fees normally charged for any additional items that were not previously included.

(i) The fee for development-wide inspection of homes after the certificate of occupancy ordered pursuant to NJAC 5:23-2.35 or otherwise shall be:

1. The hourly charge shall be an amount equal to twice the hourly base salary paid to any licensed code official(s) performing the work or the hourly fees charged to the municipality by a professional contracted to provide such services;
2. The fees, payments, accounting procedures and limits shall be set in accordance with and subjected to NJAC 5:23-4.17(d) 1 – 5.

(j) Pursuant to the rules adopted by the New Jersey Department of Children and Families, the fee for the issuance of a letter of verification of the prior uses of a structure that is intended to be used for a child care facility shall be ~~[\$86.00]~~ **\$115.00**.

(k) In order to provide for training, certification and technical support programs required by the Uniform Construction Code Act and the Regulations, the Enforcing Agency shall collect in addition to the fees, a surcharge fee of ~~[\$0.00334]~~ **\$0.00371** per cubic foot of volume of new buildings and additions. Volume shall be computed in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:23-2.28. The fee for all other construction shall be ~~[\$1.70]~~ **\$1.90** per \$1,000.00 of value of construction. Said surcharge fee shall be remitted to the Division of Codes and Standards, Department of Community Affairs, on a quarterly basis for the fiscal quarters ending September 30, December 31, March 31 and June 30, and not later than one month next succeeding the end of the quarter for which it is due.

(l) All fees are to be rounded to the nearest dollar.

SECTION 2.

That all ordinances or parts of ordinances of the Township of Neptune, in conflict or inconsistent with this ordinance, are hereby repealed, but only, however, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency; it being the legislative intent that all other ordinances, or parts of ordinances, now existing and in effect, unless the same be in conflict or inconsistent with any of the provisions of this ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3.

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption and publication according to law.

Richard J. Cuttrel,
Municipal Clerk

NOTICE
ORDINANCE NO. 18-26
Township of Neptune
County of Monmouth

NOTICE is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune on the 9th day of July, 2018, the following Ordinance was introduced and passed on first reading.

Said Township Committee will meet on Monday, the 13th day of August, 2018, at the Neptune Municipal Complex, Township Committee Meeting Room – 2nd Floor, 25 Neptune Blvd. Neptune, New Jersey at 7:00 p.m. to further consider this ordinance for final passage and to give all interested persons an opportunity to be heard concerning this ordinance. Copies of the full text of the ordinance published herewith are available for inspection by the members of the general public who shall request same at the office of the Township Clerk located at the above address. The ordinance is also posted on the Township web site at www.neptunetownship.org.

ORDINANCE NO. 18-26

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND VOLUME I, CHAPTER VII OF THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NEPTUNE BY ADDING RESIDENT ONLY HANDICAPPED PARKING ZONES ON MAIN AVENUE, BENSON AVENUE, AND ATLANTIC AVENUE AND REMOVING A HANDICAPPED PARKING ZONE ON OCEAN AVENUE

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune that the Code of the Township of Neptune is hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 1

Volume I, Chapter VII, Section 7-21.7 – Resident Handicapped On-Street Parking, is hereby amended by adding the following:

<u>Name of Street</u>	<u>No. of Spaces</u>	<u>Location</u>
Main Avenue	1	South side of Main Avenue beginning 25 feet east (first diagonal space) of the southeast intersection of Main Avenue and New Jersey Avenue
Benson Avenue	1	West side of Benson Avenue beginning 32 feet south of the southwest intersection of Benson Avenue and Embury Avenue
Atlantic Avenue	1	North side of Atlantic Avenue beginning 113 feet east of the northeast intersection of Atlantic Avenue and Beach Avenue

SECTION 2

Volume I, Chapter VII, Section 7-21.7 – Resident Handicapped On-Street Parking, is hereby amended by *removing* the following:

<u>Name of Street</u>	<u>No. of Spaces</u>	<u>Location</u>
Ocean Avenue	1	West side of Ocean Avenue beginning 67 feet north of the northwest intersection of Ocean Avenue and Seaview Avenue

SECTION 3

This ordinance shall take effect upon publication in accordance with law.

Richard J. Cuttrell,
Municipal Clerk

NOTICE
ORDINANCE NO. 18-27
Township of Neptune
County of Monmouth

NOTICE is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune on the 9th day of July, 2018, the following Ordinance was introduced and passed on first reading.

Said Township Committee will meet on Monday, the 13th day of August, 2018, at the Neptune Municipal Complex, Township Committee Meeting Room – 2nd Floor, 25 Neptune Blvd. Neptune, New Jersey at 7:00 p.m. to further consider this ordinance for final passage and to give all interested persons an opportunity to be heard concerning this ordinance. Copies of the full text of the ordinance published herewith are available for inspection by the members of the general public who shall request same at the office of the Township Clerk located at the above address. The ordinance is also posted on the Township web site at www.neptunetownship.org.

ORDINANCE NO. 18-27

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND VOLUME I, CHAPTER VII, SECTION 7-11 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NEPTUNE BY ESTABLISHING A STOP INTERSECTION AT YALE ROAD AND HARVARD AVENUE

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Neptune that the Code of the Township of Neptune is hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 1

Volume I, Chapter VII, Section 7-11 – STOP INTERSECTIONS - is hereby amended to add the following:

Intersection
Yale Road and Harvard Avenue

Stop Sign On:
Yale Road

SECTION 2

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption and publication according to law.

Richard J. Cuttrel,
Municipal Clerk